
MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
AND HEALTH)

DATE: Tuesday, 25th February 2020

TIME: 6.30 p.m.

VENUE: Committee Room - Bootle Town Hall, Trinity Road, Bootle, L20 7AE

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Cllr. Mhairi Doyle, M.B.E. (Chair)
Cllr. Diane Roscoe (Vice-Chair)
Cllr. Anthony Carr
Cllr. Linda Cluskey
Cllr. Christine Howard
Cllr. David Irving
Cllr. Terry Jones
Cllr. Greg Myers
Cllr. Dr. John Pugh
Cllr. Carran Waterfield
Brian Clark, Healthwatch
Roger Hutchings, Healthwatch

Cllr. Clare Carragher
Cllr. Sean Halsall
Cllr. Nina Killen
Cllr. Michael O'Brien
Cllr. Michael Roche
Cllr. Pat O'Hanlon
Cllr. Tony Brough
Cllr. Paul Tweed
Cllr. Iain Brodie - Browne
Cllr. Veronica Webster

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Debbie Campbell, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2254
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14)
Minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 2020.

4.  Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust - Low Secure Unit 
Project

(Pages 15 - 
18)

Elaine Wilkinson, Strategic Project Manager, Mersey Care 
NHS Foundation Trust, to attend to give a presentation.

5.  Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust - 
Update
Representatives of the Trust to attend to give a presentation.

6.  Community Substance Use
The Council’s Public Health Lead to give a presentation.

7.  Social Prescribing in Sefton (Pages 19 - 
38)

Tracy Jeffes, Director of Place, NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group, plus a representative from Sefton 
CVS, to attend to give a presentation.

8.  Climate Emergency - Update Report
A presentation to be given.



9.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report (Pages 39 - 
42)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

10.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider 
Performance Dashboard

(Pages 43 - 
50)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

The Chief Operating Officer, Southport and Ormskirk 
Hospital NHS Trust, to attend to discuss transient ischaemic 
attack (TIA) (mini stroke) performance at the Trust.

11.  Cabinet Member Reports (Pages 51 - 
66)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.

12.  Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan (Pages 67 - 
82)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL IN”.

35

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT
ON TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

PRESENT: Councillor Doyle (in the Chair)
Councillor Roscoe (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors Carr, Howard, Irving, Jones, Myers, 
Pugh and Waterfield

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. B. Clark, Healthwatch
Mr. R. Hutchings, Healthwatch
Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing

35. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology was received from Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member – 
Adult Social Care.

36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Paragraph 9 of the Council’s Code of Conduct, the 
following declaration of personal interest was made, and the Member 
concerned remained in the room during the consideration of the item:

 
Member Minute No. Nature of Interest

Councillor 
Roscoe

Minute No. 38 – 
Joint Strategic 
Needs 
Assessment

She is an Administration and 
Support Officer for the British Lung 
Foundation.

37. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2019, be confirmed as 
a correct record.

38. JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

The Committee received a presentation from Wayne Leatherbarrow, the 
Service Manager – Performance and Business Intelligence, Strategic 
Support, on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The 
presentation outlined the following:

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

36

 Sefton Business Intelligence;
 Sefton:

o By Wards;
o Information on the Borough;
o Population;
o Household Properties;
o Working age employment rate;
o Children and Young People;
o Visitors and Recreational Facilities;

 Deprivation Across Sefton;
 Identifying Financial Risk:

o People aged 65+;
o Working Age and Young People;

 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment:
o Data Collection and Analysis;
o Summary of Data Analysis;

 Summary (If Sefton was a community of only 100 Adults and 100 
Children);

 The Four Pillars of Population Health;
 Sefton’s Health and Wellbeing Across the Life-course;
 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – Next Steps; and
 Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Could comparisons of Wards be provided?
Comparative positions were provided within each Ward profile, 
relative to data items being compared with.

 Did the recreational facilities include the coast?
Yes.

 Did the business opportunities include Peel Ports, and could the 
number of business opportunities be sought?
Peel Ports was included. Any business opportunities would need to 
be open to all residents, rather than certain Wards only.

 How often was the JSNA undertaken?
Every 4 years. More frequent lower level analysis was undertaken 
and informed service delivery.

 How did the existence of the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority affect the JSNA?
Each local authority undertook its own JSNA. Information was 
shared between authorities and comparisons used.

 Were the figures fed into the fairer funding calculation and were 
there any discrepancies?

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

37

The figures were used for the fairer funding calculation and 
discrepancies had not been found.

 Was it possible to identify specific areas where deaths due to air 
pollution occurred and did any trends analysis take place?
Deaths due to air pollution could be mapped and tended to occur on 
main arterial routes. Trend analysis did not take place.

The Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG, reported that the CCGs 
utilised the JSNA data as predicted prevalences could be sought. Trends 
were examined for predictions and forecasts.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation be noted and the Service Manager – Performance 
and Business Intelligence, be thanked for his attendance.

39. CLIMATE EMERGENCY 

Further to Minute No. 33 of the Council meeting of 18 July 2019, the 
Committee considered the joint report of the Head of Corporate Resources 
and the Executive Director indicating that at its meeting on 18 July 2019, 
the Council had agreed a motion to declare a Climate Emergency. Work 
had progressed since that date on developing a programme structure, 
strategy and initial implementation plan for delivery of the motion and its 
objectives. In order to further inform this work, a baseline position was 
required across the Council of work that was currently underway or 
planned that could contribute to the Council achieving the aims of the 
motion. The report provided a summary of work undertaken to date and 
the exercise that was required to be led through each Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in order to establish that baseline position.

The Section Manager Energy and Environmental Management, Corporate 
Resources, attended the meeting to provide a presentation to Members on 
the Climate Emergency.

The presentation outlined the following:

 Purpose;
 Sefton Target;
 How we quantify our emissions; and
 Next Steps.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Had the government set aside any resources for this matter, as the 
initial investment required to achieve the goals would be large.
The general direction of travel to carbon neutral goals was taking 
place and local authorities needed to be moving towards cleaner 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

38

investments. Funding might become available and discussions with 
the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority could take place.

 Did the Council’s core purpose of Cleaner Greener include public 
transport?
It did include public transport.

The Committee agreed that:

(1) the Council’s agreed approach to delivering the objectives, as set 
out in the Council motion that declared a climate emergency, be 
noted;

(2) the activity that will take place within the first 12 months of the 
programme; be noted; and

(3) the important role of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
delivering the Council’s objectives, as set out in the agreed motion, 
and the initial work that is required to be carried out in each area of 
the Council’s activity by all Heads of Service, in order to form an 
initial baseline position, be noted. This initial work will be reported 
back to the next meeting of the Committee.

40. PRIMARY CARE NETWORKS IN SEFTON 

The Committee received a presentation from Tracy Jeffes, Director of 
Place – South Sefton, Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) on Primary 
Care Networks (PCNs) in Sefton. The presentation outlined the following:

 Overview of the presentation;
 Policy and delivery at different levels;
 A possible future landscape for Sefton;
 A confident and connected Borough;
 What are PCNs?;
 National Policy on PCNs;
 Recent announcements;
 Local relevance of PCNs;
 Sefton PCNs;
 Sefton’s Locality Model;
 PCN Clinical Directors;
 Progress so far:

o getting established;
o Team and service development across Sefton PCNs;

 Individual PCN priorities; and
 Summary.

Dr Craig Gillespie. Clinical Vice-Chair, NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group, GP lead for primary care, and Clinical Director 
Crosby and Maghull PCN, was also in attendance to provide information 
and respond to questions put by Members of the Committee.

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

39

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Did GPs have no option on whether to join a PCN?
PCNs were part of national policy. GPs often practiced in groups. 
This was the first time they had been joined together as a way of 
moving forward. Some practices in Sefton had chosen not to join a 
PCN and their patients would be allocated to a PCN.

 Were pharmacists part of PCNs?
Yes, PCNs were not just a group of GPs. At some point PCNs may 
broaden, depending on directives from NHS England. High street 
pharmacists wanted to engage with PCNs which were in different 
places of development and ever-evolving.

 Would PCNs take GPs away from patients and had this time factor 
been assessed?
There was acknowledgement that this important piece of work could 
take GPs away from a limited amount of clinical practice.

 Social prescribing could make a difference at the local level, 
although funding was required to support it.
Integrated commissioning provided opportunities to utilise social 
prescribing and some funding was available for it.

 Reference was made to the proposals for a low secure facility at 
the Ashworth Hospital site as a site for national excellence.
Work was taking place between the CCGs and Mersey Care on an 
integrated model for community services.

The Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG, reported that regular 
updates on progress of the PCNs could be reported to the Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation and information provided on Primary Care Networks 
in Sefton be noted, and regular updates be received by the Committee.

41. UPDATE ON NORTH MERSEY URGENT CARE REVIEW 

The Committee considered the joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) that set out the case for change for the 
North Mersey Urgent Care Review that was currently ongoing across NHS 
South Sefton CCG and NHS Liverpool CCG; presented the findings from 
early engagement with local populations; and set out the next steps in the 
process to bring forward a proposal for the future delivery of these 
services.

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

40

The report set out the background to the matter; the current position; the 
scope of the urgent care review; the engagement approach; health and 
care system collaboration; together with a conclusion and indicative 
timescale.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 The review did not include the 7 Day GP extended access scheme 
and currently service delivery would not necessarily fit together.
The 7 Day GP extended access scheme had been considered and 
that concern had been expressed previously. Services would need 
to be aligned and the process managed.

 Could services be in conflict if the proposals were put in place?
The specification for the urgent care review would require flexibility 
in order to avoid such conflict.

RESOLVED:

That the update on the North Mersey Urgent Care Review be noted.

42. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - UPDATE 
REPORT 

The Committee considered the joint update report of the NHS South 
Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group and the NHS Southport and Formby 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), providing an update about the work 
of the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). The report outlined details 
of the following:

 Help us help you – holiday health advice;
 Events encourage Sefton residents to join patient groups;
 Sefton 2gether – five-year plan for health finalised;
 Video campaign encourages Sefton residents to self-care;
 Patients urged to play their part to keep antibiotics working; and
 New faces at governing body meetings.

RESOLVED:

That the update report submitted by the Clinical Commissioning Groups be 
received.

43. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - HEALTH 
PROVIDER PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 

The Committee considered the joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), that provided data on key performance 
areas, together with responses for the Friends and Family Test for both 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

41

Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust and Aintree University 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. Information on the monitoring of the new 
7-day GP extended access scheme for both CCGs was included within the 
data. Further to Minute No. 27 (2) and 31 (2) of 15 October 2019, 
information on both the transient ischaemic attack (TIA) (mini stroke) 
performance and cancer – 62-day screening at Southport and Ormskirk 
Hospital NHS Trust was also provided.

The Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG, reported that the Chief 
Operating Officer at Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust could be 
invited to a future meeting in order to report on transient ischaemic attack 
(TIA) (mini stroke) performance, as part of the Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Groups’ update report.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Regarding Mental Health: IAPT Access, why was the target set as 
1.59% per month quarter 1-3? Was it compared 
nationally/regionally?
This was a national target. Comparisons had been sought and the 
CCGs would continue to lobby to ask for the target to be reviewed.

 The utilisation for the 7-day GP enhanced access scheme for both 
CCGs was low and it would be interesting to see the demand for 
each discipline.
Anecdotal reports suggested the figures had improved since 
September 2019, the date of the most recent data available. Further 
detail on the enhanced access scheme could be provided in future 
reports, if available.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the information on Health Provider Performance be noted; and

(2) the Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups be requested to invite 
the Chief Operating Officer at Southport and Ormskirk Hospital 
NHS Trust to a future meeting of the Committee, in order to report 
on transient ischaemic attack (TIA) (mini stroke) performance, as 
part of the Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups’ update report.

44. CABINET MEMBER REPORTS 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer submitting the most recent update reports from the Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care, and the Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing, whose portfolios fell within the remit of the Committee.

The Cabinet Member update report – Adult Social Care, attached to the 
report at Appendix A, outlined information on the following:

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

42

 Good News – Local Government Chronicle Awards;
 Commissioning;
 Safeguarding;
 National Safeguarding Week;
 Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board;
 Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Proposal – Adult 

Safeguarding;
 Social Work England;
 Apprenticeships;
 Financial Update

o Revenue; and
o Adult Social Care Capital.

Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care, had submitted 
his apologies for the meeting.

The Cabinet Member update report – Health and Wellbeing, attached to 
the report at Appendix B, outlined information on the following:

 Health Checks;
 Screening Update;
 Community Infection, Protection and Control;
 Winter Planning;
 Obesity;
 Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs);
 Southport Money Advice Group;
 Transformational Change of Public Health Services;
 Public Health Sector-Led Improvement;
 Public Health Service Plan Update;
 Prevention Green Paper Consultation Response;
 Sefton Sports Awards – Venue Proposal; and
 Active Sefton Summer Programmes;

Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing, attended the 
meeting to present his update report and highlight aspects of it.

RESOLVED:

That the update reports from the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and 
the Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing be noted.

45. WORK PROGRAMME KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer, seeking the views of the Committee on the Work Programme for 
the remainder of the Municipal Year 2019/20; identifying any items for pre-
scrutiny from the Key Decision Forward Plan; considering the process to 
be undertaken during 2020 regarding draft Quality Accounts; and receiving 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 7TH JANUARY, 2020

43

an update on the Liverpool combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

The Committee agreed that:

(1) the Work Programme for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix A to the 
report, be agreed;

(2) the contents of the Key Decision Forward Plan for the period 1 
January – 30 April 2020, be noted;

(3) consideration of the arrangements to scrutinise draft Quality 
Accounts during 2020 be delegated to the Chair of the Committee 
and once the process has been determined, Committee Members 
to be informed of the arrangements; and

(4) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee be noted.

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Sefton Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



Update on developments within Sefton

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



Future proposals for 
developments in the 
Sefton area

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Social Prescribing & 
Social Prescribing Link Workers in Sefton

Tracy Jeffes, Director of Place – South

NHS SSCCG and NHS SFCCG

Louise McDade – Programme Manager 

Living Well Sefton, Sefton CVS

February 2020

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



What we will cover….

• What is Social Prescribing?

• The national and local context

• Collaborative working in Sefton

• The role of the Primary Care Network Social 
Prescribing Link worker 

• Progress so far and future opportunities

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



What is Social Prescribing?

One definition is:

“Promoting good personal health and wellbeing 

through involvement in social and community 

based activities.”

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



What is Social Prescribing?

• Aims to address need in a holistic way

• Support individuals to take greater control of 

their own health

• Many different models but most involve a “link 

worker” or “navigator”

• Particularly helpful for vulnerable groups, 

socially isolated, those with long term conditions

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



National guidance

• NHS England (NHSE) Good Practice Guide 
published 

• Part of Personalised Care Programme

• NHSE Contract guidance for Primary Care Networks 
(PCNs) specifying role and highlighting funding for 
Social Prescribing Link Workers (SPLW)

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



Collaborative working in Sefton

Sefton Social Prescribing Group

• Collaborative approach– Voluntary, Community and 

Faith (VCF) sector, Sefton Council, CCGs, NHS 

Community Providers, Primary Care Networks 

(PCNs), NHSE

• Feeds into our joint Council and CCG Integrated 

Commissioning Group and Sefton Health and Care 

Transformation Programme’s Provider Alliance 

• Key strand of the Sefton Place-based / borough 

model

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



Social Prescribing in Sefton’s place-based 
model

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



Sefton Social Prescribing Group
What the group has been focusing on:

• Mapping of current activities to get on “same page” 

and share good practice

• Establishing a collective approach,  avoid duplication, 

quality assurance

• Considering “enablers” together – workforce, training, 

information technology

• Collective plan to meet emerging NHSE national 

guidance

• Developing information to inform stakeholders

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 7



Role of Social Prescribing link worker
SPLW will be embedded within PCN multidisciplinary 
teams to :

• Provide personalised support to individuals, their families 
and carers to take control of their wellbeing, live 
independently, and improve their health outcomes 

• Develop trusting relationships by giving people time and 
focusing on ‘what matters to them’ - 250 caseload per 
year

• Take a holistic approach, based on the person’s 
priorities, and the wider determinants of health 

• Co-produce a simple personalised care and support plan 
to improve health and wellbeing 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



Role of Social Prescribing Link Workers

• Introduce or reconnect people to community groups and 

services 

• Evaluate the individual impact of a person’s wellness 

progress 

• Record referrals within GP clinical systems 

• Support the delivery of the comprehensive model of 

personalised care 

• Draw on and increase the strengths and capacities of 

local communities, enabling local VCF organisations and 

community groups to receive social prescribing referrals

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7



Model for Social Prescribing

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



Not new in Sefton…

• SPLWs presented a real opportunity to build on local 
success and connect approaches together
• Health and Wellbeing trainers – south Sefton

• Living Well Sefton all Sefton

• Community Connectors – some areas

• Well Sefton pilot – Bootle 

• Mersey Care Life Rooms Pathway Advisors

• Macmillan/ Right By You 

• Underpinned by strong and vibrant VCF sector in 
Sefton - over 1400 VCF services - needs to be 
sustained

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7



The Sefton approach

• All Sefton PCNs very supportive of working in 

collaboration with the CCGs to commission local VCF 

organisations to host their social prescribing link worker 

(SPLW)  co-ordinated by Sefton CVS

• To build on the Living Well Sefton model and 

infrastructure to support, coordinate and quality assure 

the work of the SPLW hosted by voluntary sector 

partners 

• The SPLW service to also ensure support for those 

organisations receiving onward referrals

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7



The Sefton SPLW Service

• A cohesive and coordinated social prescribing model 

that links seamlessly with the existing range of 

complementary roles

• The SPLW as part of and have access to a wide range of 

local and thematic expertise and connection to over a 

thousand local VCF services through the integrated 

wellness service database 

• Tailored operational delivery to the needs of the local 

population and working arrangements of practices.

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7



Diagram of model

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7



Highlights of Progress to date

• A voluntary sector partnership approach has been 

established

• Grant agreements signed with CCGs and PCNs

• Key indicators established

• 7.5 Link Workers have been recruited

• A thorough induction has taken place

• 6.5 workers are now in GP Practices supporting patients 

• Positive feedback has been received from the Primary 

Care Networks and Link Workers have been warmly 

welcomed

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 7



Progress to date

Link Worker 
Induction 

Standard 
Operating 

Procedure

Promotional 
materials 
produced

Establishing 
relationships

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7



Making a Difference

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 7



Making a Difference

‘Well done.  You’ve done really well to establish 
good links and working relationships with all 5 
practices. That’s’ not easy – Excellent’ 
Clinical Lead

‘Thank you very much Debbie, I appreciate all your hard 

work. Life is looking a little brighter and I can only hope 
now to get my health back on track.  See you 
Wednesday.’ 
Person accessing social prescribing

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 7



Next steps 

• Implementation of referral and reporting 

mechanisms

• Supporting more people on a one to one basis

• Continued development of Link Workers

• Sustaining positive relationships and embedding 

social prescribing

• Evidencing and reporting positive outcomes

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 7



1

Scrutiny Briefing Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Adult Social Care and Health)

Date of Meeting: 25 February 2020

Subject: Update Report of Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer

Organisation: NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG

Contact Officer: Lyn Cooke
Tel: 0151 317 8456
Email: lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk  

Purpose/Summary

To provide Members of the Committee with an update about the work of NHS South 
Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG.

Recommendation(s)

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) are 
requested to receive this report.

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

mailto:lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk


2

Update for Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) 
February 2020

If you would like more information about any of the items contained in this update, if you have 
any questions about local health services, or any particular issues you would like to raise, 
please call 0151 317 8456.   

Potential merger with CCGs in North Merseyside 

In February both CCG governing bodies were asked to consider whether they should explore 
possibly merging with neighbouring commissioners in Knowsley and Liverpool to identify 
opportunities to strengthen local commissioning arrangements in health for the benefit of our 
residents. This move would be in line with the NHS Long Term Plan and would additionally 
support CCGs to achieve a required 20% reduction in running costs. A paper presented to each 
governing body started to describe the benefits of a possible merger, a preferred option to bring 
together the four North Merseyside CCGs and next steps, including starting to speak with 
partners about any possible changes to commissioning arrangements. Whilst such a change 
would not formally require a consultation, it is essential as part of the approval process, key 
stakeholders, including CCG memberships, staff, local authorities, local medical committees and 
Healthwatch organisations, support such proposals. These discussions will inform a final 
proposal for a preferred recommendation to be made by CCG governing bodies to the CCGs 
members in March 2020. A full copy of the paper is available in the February governing body 
meeting pack, which can be found on each CCG website using the details at the end of this 
report. 

Dil welcomed to Governing Body  

Dil Daly was officially welcomed as the new NHS Southport and Formby CCG lay representative 
for public involvement at the February Governing Body meeting. Dil has been chief executive of 
Age Concern Liverpool and Sefton for a number of years. His previous roles include sales 
engineer with an electronics company in Buckinghamshire, youth service literacy project 
manager in Sheffield, education officer in a London based older people’s charity, community 
services manager at Age Concern Westminster and the chief officer at Age Concern Redbridge 
in East London. The next Governing Body meetings for both CCGs take place in April. Anyone 
wishing to attend is asked to contact 0151 317 8456 to book their place. These meetings are 
held in public and start at 1pm on the dates and at the venues below:

 NHS Southport and Formby CCG – Wednesday 1 April, Family Life Centre, Ash St, 
Southport, Merseyside, PR8 6JH 

 NHS South Sefton CCG - Thursday 2 April, 3rd floor boardroom, Merton House, Stanley 
Rd, Bootle, L20 3DL

Page 40

Agenda Item 9



3

Women urged to attend their cervical screening

During Cervical Cancer Prevention Week 2020 (20-26 January) health professionals from both 
CCGs were reminding women about the importance of attending their cervical screening – 
known as a smear test. Cervical cancer affects around 3,000 women in the UK every year, 
making it the most common form of cancer for women under the age of 35. 

According to Jo’s Cervical Cancer Trust, 75 per cent of these cases can be prevented through 
testing. Screening is the best way to test for human papillomavirus (HPV). If the test comes back 
positive for HPV, the sample will then be tested for abnormal cells. If left untreated, abnormal 
cells can develop into cervical cancer. 

In 2018-2019, only 70.4 per cent of women aged 25-49 in south Sefton attended their cervical 
screenings after receiving their invitation letter and this figure was slightly higher for Southport 
and Formby at 73.45 per cent. Health leaders are keen for more women to take up the offer. 
Women aged 25 to 49 are offered screening every three years, and 50 to 64 year olds are 
screened every five years. 

Thanks to the GP Extra and 7 Day GP services, local residents can book to have their smear test 
carried out by a practice nurse on a weekday evening (5-8pm) or, weekend including bank 
holidays (10am-1pm), making it easier for those who are busy during the day to attend their 
screening. These appointments can be booked via residents’ regular GP practices. 

For more information on cervical cancer and what the screening test involves, you can visit 
www.nhs.uk/cervicalcancer  More information on GP extended access service appointments is 
available from each CCG website using the details at the end of this briefing or via people’s GP 
practices.

Children’s mental health week 

Together with Sefton Council, the CCGs supported children’s mental health week in early 
February, by encouraging them to talk to their parents or carers about their mental health and to 
seek support from local services. 

According to the Mental Health Foundation, one in 10 young people will experience a mental 
health condition, which is why early help is recognised to be of utmost importance. Helping 
young people to get the support and treatment they need before their difficulties become even 
more challenging, can really improve their chances of recovery and prevent them from bringing 
these problems into adulthood.

In Sefton, there are a number of services available to children and young people who need 
support. Those aged 11 to 18 in the borough have access to an online counselling and emotional 
wellbeing platform called ‘Kooth’ that the council and CCGs jointly commission. This provides 
free and anonymous mental health and wellbeing support to young people. 

Children and young people, and their families and carers, with concerns about emotional and 
mental wellbeing can also speak with their GP or another professional (like school nurse, social 
worker, health visitor or teacher) for help and advice. 

Kooth can be accessed at www.kooth.com 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9

http://www.nhs.uk/cervicalcancer
http://www.kooth.com/


4

NHS App 

During February, the CCGs have been reminding residents that all GP practices in the borough 
are fully linked up with the NHS App, giving them the ability to book and manage doctors’ 
appointments, order repeat prescriptions, view their GP medical records securely and access a 
range of other services via their smartphone or tablet. 

Anyone registered with a Sefton practice can download the app from the Apple or Android stores 
and follow the simple on screen instructions to set it up, link it to their GP surgery and enjoy its 
full functionality. Unlike previous online GP services, patients do not need to visit their GP 
practice to set up a login for the NHS App. Anyone can prove their identity by following the 
instructions on the app to create their NHS login. There are a number of different features 
available on the NHS App that Sefton residents can benefit from including:

 Checking their symptoms and find out what to do when they need help urgently

 Booking and managing appointments at their GP practice

 Ordering repeat prescriptions

 Securely viewing their GP medical record

 Registering to be an organ donor

 Choosing how the NHS uses their data.

More information about the NHS App can be found at www.nhs.uk/nhsapp.

Annual patient and community engagement assessment 

Sefton’s two CCGs have submitted evidence to NHS England in the 2019-2020 assessment 
process against the patient and community engagement indicators as part of the wider national 
outcomes framework. This is the third year since the introduction of the indicators, which link 
closely to the ‘key actions’ in statutory guidance for CCGs relating to patient and public 
participation in commissioning health and care. The CCGs completed a self assessment linking 
to evidence published on their websites that illustrates how they have met the performance 
indicators across the overarching areas of governance, annual reporting, feedback and 
evaluation, equalities and health inequalities and day to day practice. 

Last year the CCGs moved from a good or ‘green’ rating in 2017-2018, to the highest ranking of 
‘green star’. As a result they were asked to share their good practice at a recent NHS England 
improvement workshop. The CCGs carried out their self assessment through their joint 
Engagement and Patient Experience Group, which beings them together with representatives 
from partners including Sefton Council, Healthwatch Sefton and Sefton CVS. From February to 
June, NHS England will be assurance checking all CCG submissions and will publish its results 
in the summer.

Visit the CCGs’ websites for more about their work www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk or 
www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk, follow them on Twitter @NHSSSCCG or 
@NHSSFCCG or see a range of short films on You Tube for NHSSSCCG or NHS SFCCG 

Page 42

Agenda Item 9

http://www.nhs.uk/nhsapp
http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/
https://twitter.com/NHSSSCCG
https://twitter.com/nhssfccg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVF6RjsbZXnXFmoHqMzSJnQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC3zskxhEM5dWeJtypBBmTOA


Main Provider Performance

February 2020

The following slides present performance against key strategic, NHS constitution, quality 

and safety indicators for the main providers the two CCGs commission from.   

Time periods vary for the indicators presented, and are indicated in the tables. 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 10



NHS Southport & Formby CCG
Key Performance Area

Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumultive YTD) 
Nov-19 83.1%

93.0%

(Improvement Plan)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumulative YTD)
Nov-19 96.4% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (Southport & 

Ormskirk Cumulative YTD)
Nov-19 0.0% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Southport & Ormskirk, 

cumulative YTD)
Nov-19 96.5% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Southport & 

Ormskirk, in month snaphot position)
Nov-19 93.3% 92%

C.Difficile (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Nov-19 35

9 YTD

16 (year end)   

MRSA (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Nov-19 1 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit, Southport & Ormskirk, monthly 

snapshot position)

Nov-19 64.5% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Southport & Ormskirk, monthly snapshot 

position)

Nov-19 4.5% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Nov-19

8 minutes

10 seconds
<=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2   

Nov-19
94.7% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Nov-19 0.93%

 1.59% per month Qtr 1-3 

1.83% per month Qtr 4   

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Nov-19 37.3% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2   

Nov-19
97.9% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2   

Nov-19
100.0% 90%

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 10



Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust
Friends & Family

Measure
Time 

Period

Southport & 

Ormskirk
England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Nov-19 16.4% 25.0%

Inpatient Recommended Nov-19 94.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Nov-19 2.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Nov-19 23.3% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Nov-19 89.0% 84.0%

A&E Not Recommended Nov-19 6.0% 10.0%

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 10



NHS Southport & Formby CCG
7 Day GP Extended Access

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 10



NHS South Sefton CCG
Key Performance Area

Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Aintree) Nov-19 80.4%
88%

(Improvement Plan)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Aintree) Nov-19 91.6% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (LUHFT) Nov-19 77.1% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Aintree) Nov-19 96.3% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Aintree) Nov-19 84.3% 92%

C.Difficile (Aintree) Nov-19 85
14 YTD

56 (year end)

MRSA (Aintree) Nov-19 2 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit) (Aintree)
Nov-19 79.4% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Aintree)
Nov-19 100% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Nov-19

7 minutes

09 seconds
<=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2   

Nov-19
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Nov-19 1.02%

1.59% per month Qtr 1-3

1.83% per month Qtr 4

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Nov-19 47.6% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2   

Nov-19
97.5% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2   

Nov-19
100.0% 90%

Key 

LUHFT = Liverpool 

University Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust 

Aintree = Aintree 

Hospital site, now part 

of LUHFT

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 10



Aintree Hospital site
Friends and Family

Measure
Time 

Period
Aintree England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Nov-19 20.0% 25.0%

Inpatient Recommended Nov-19 94.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Nov-19 3.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Nov-19 17.7% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Nov-19 87.0% 84.0%

A&E Not Recommended Nov-19 8.0% 10.0%

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 10



NHS South Sefton CCG
7 Day GP Extended Access

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 25 February 2020

Subject: Cabinet Member Reports – February 2020

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To submit the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - 
Health and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Recommendation:

That the Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - Health 
and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

No alternative options have been considered because the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Any financial implications associated with the Cabinet Member reports which are 
referred to in this update are contained within the respective reports.

Page 51

Agenda Item 11



2

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Legal Implications:

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. The Cabinet 
Member updates provides information on activity within Councillor Cummins’ and 
Councillor Moncur’s portfolios during the previous three-month period. Any 
reports relevant to their portfolios considered by the Cabinet, Cabinet Member or 
Committees during this period would contain information as to how such reports 
contributed to the Council’s Core Purpose.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above

Place – leadership and influencer: As above

Drivers of change and reform: As above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above

Greater income for social investment: As above

Cleaner Greener: As above

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Cabinet Member Update Reports are not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any 
specific financial and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports 
arising from the attached Cabinet Member update reports will be included in those 
reports as appropriate

Page 52

Agenda Item 11



3

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:

Appendix A - Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care - update report
Appendix B - Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing – update report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member 
Reports to be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

1.2 Attached to this report, for information, are the most recent Cabinet Member 
reports for the Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing portfolios.

Page 53

Agenda Item 11

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE REPORT
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health)

25th February 2020

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Paul Cummins Adult Social Care Jan/Feb

Strategic Commissioning

Single-Handed Care Project - Dignity at Home 

This project has been established to support independence at home and reduce the number of 
care staff required on each domiciliary care call. This is a less intrusive way of delivering care to 
people in their own home. There is a national evidence base that indicates safety can be 
compromised in some circumstances when there are two carers managing moving and handling 
care in a person’s home. 

Work is ongoing with different care agencies across Sefton to provide equipment so that agencies 
can use it to improve independence at home for people who use services. The single-handed care 
reviews are being allocated across the project team and guidance is being worked on for all teams 
regarding this area of work.

This project is anticipated to save £322k full year effect in 33 cases.

Extra Care Housing 

The new strategic manager for extra care housing started in this new exciting role in January. The 
remit to help develop the strategic plans and turn these into the delivery and provision of Extra 
Care Housing. The role will work across both adult social care, housing and commissioning. To 
date, several meetings with internal partners have been undertaken to ensure key officers 
understand the roles, remit and internal partnership arrangements are embedded from the start.  
Some early meetings with external partners have also taken place to provide an overview of the 
role, and begin to form potential partnership arrangements.

A project plan and an extra care prospectus will be developed to provide an early indication of, and 
outline to, the proposed approach to this work going forward, and which sets out the Borough’s 
needs and approach to future extra care provision.

Residential and Nursing Care Sector

Payments to Care Homes 

A report was approved by Cabinet in September which both provided an update on work taking 
place on the sector, and the commencement of a project regarding Sefton making gross payments 
to care homes.  One element of this is how Sefton will explore linking into a newly established 
forum which has been set up by a provider.  

There is the potential to link into this forum so that Sefton can outline issues such as its future 
commissioning intentions etc. The forum can also be utilised as a mechanism to share good 

Page 55

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX A
practice, drive service quality improvement work and assist with the promotion of training 
opportunities.  
The Cabinet report also sought approval for the commencement of a pilot project for Sefton to 
scope out the potential to amend payment mechanisms to care homes, which encompasses 
moving from paying net to paying gross. Work is currently taking place formulating a project plan, 
which will include elements such as assessing the financial impacts, and reviews of current policies 
and procedures. 

Care Home Quality

Members will be pleased to hear that the Sefton New Directions home, Hudson Road has been 
awarded “outstanding” rating from the CQC.  This is now the second home within the Borough to 
receive this status out of only 6 across the City Region.  Members will be pleased to hear that there 
are currently no “inadequate” rated homes within the Borough.

Financial Update 

Revenue

As reported within December’s monitoring position, the forecast for 2019/20 outturn is a balanced 
budget.  Although the Community Care budget remains under pressure, the overspend in this area 
can be mitigated in part from surpluses within other areas.

Surpluses in other areas include employee vacancy turnover, reduction in specialist transport costs 
due to a revised split between Adults’ and Children’s, and capitalisation of some community 
equipment will go some way to offsetting the deficit on the placements and packages spend.  
However, there remains a budget gap of £0.641m. Remedial measures to enable the Adult Social 
Care service to achieve a balanced budget will include the development of projects including 
Double to Single Handed Care which can progress due to enabling capital funding.  Further areas 
of mitigation include service reviews and maximisation of income collection from NHS for joint 
funding where appropriate. 
 
Work has begun on projects to contain demand for services which will gain traction as the year 
progresses. 

Capital 

The Capital programme was reviewed as part of December monitoring and any delays in project 
start dates or slippage in projects have led to a reprofiling of expenditure into the next financial 
year. The capital programme will continue to be reviewed monthly and forecasts amended where 
required. 

The plan for the ‘Wider Social Care’ element of the Disabled Facilities Grant has  a reduced  
forecast capital spend of £1.085m in 2019/20 and an increased forecast of £4.942m in 2020/21 
due to the reprofiling of a number of the capital schemes including Retail Model (£0.250m), 
Improvement Programme - complex needs (£0.200m) and Care Home Improvements (£0.200m). 
 Other projects which are designed to support and improve service provision and maintain 
independence are anticipated to spend their full allocation in the current year. Projects include:

 Equipment/OT staff to support the Double to Single Handed Care project
 Community Equipment - Adults and Children
 ICT development and Transformation
 Assistive technology

Page 56

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX A
The ‘Core’ DFG element of the Disabled Facilities Grant agreed for 19/20 was reprofiled earlier in 
the year and £1.82m is being carried forward.

Safeguarding 

Developments with Trading Standards work

Safeguarding and Trading Standards Team colleagues have met to discuss the management of 
referrals from the Nationals Scams Team. The national team hold details on 700 victims living in 
the Sefton area, which they have collated over some years.  This information is categorised from 
1-4 with Priority 1 being respondents to telephone/marketing scams that have either sent money 
or paperwork to the scammers. This mail is lawfully intercepted by the enquiry agency without 
notification to the individual. This has resulted in the retaining of money/documents that require 
return and attempts made to educate the individuals reducing risk of continued involvement.  

Safeguarding and Trading Standards are exploring pathways for management of the referrals and 
Sefton Trading Standards have agreed to take referrals made in the past 3 years, this amounts to 
information on 291 people. The first batch of information will be for individuals that have met Priority 
1 criteria initially, with a limited number of referrals delivered each month.   

Sefton Trading Standards staff will advise Adult Social Care of the referrals and the computer 
system will be checked to determine if and what information is known about the person prior to 
agreeing the most appropriate approach to be taken. 
 
Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board 

MSAB has now been subject to an LGA Peer Review.

Independent Reviewers spoke to me, the Interim DASS and Board Sub Group members.  The 
scope of the challenge was based on:

 How does the combined Board deliver against the original ambitions agreed in 2017?
 How does the combined Board work for members …benefits and challenges of working 

across the wider footprint?  

Initial feedback and key messages recognised a shared ambitious vision to keep people safe 
across the area with the Independent Chair bringing energy and commitment to the role.  
Membership of Board Sub Groups were recognised as having demonstrated strong commitment 
as was the good working relationship between the four Elected Members.  

However, there is considered to be a confusion over the role and function of the Board, which 
needs to prioritise strategic and assurance functions.  I am minded to instigate withdrawal from this 
Board and reinstate a full Safeguarding Adults Board on the Borough footprint.  

Sefton’s Safeguarding and Care Governance Board 

This is a local assurance board established by the Interim DASS and its focus is on local 
safeguarding concerns. Membership of the Board has been extended to include Southport and 
Ormskirk Hospital, Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Sefton CCGs, 
Merseycare, Healthwatch, Sefton CVS and the Fire Service.  This will help Sefton gain assurance 
of the effectiveness of safeguarding activity across the partnership and identify continuous 
improvement in improving the quality of life for adults with care and support needs and their carers 
in line with MSP.  Invitations have been very gratefully received. 

The forthcoming Board meeting will facilitate discussion to revisit Terms of Reference and identify 
the refreshed Workplan of the Board.

Page 57

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX A

Operational Safeguarding Performance

Sefton’s first Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) is nearing sign off with the final draft now circulated 
to Panel members.  This will be presented to the Safeguarding and Care Governance Board during 
Spring 2020 and will then be presented to Overview and Scrutiny in a future agenda.

During the month of December there was a continued decrease in new concerns.  Around two 
thirds of reported abuse concerns are as a result of “neglect and acts of omission” or physical 
abuse (102).  The proportion of abuse that takes place in a care setting or the victim’s own home 
has seen a slight increase whilst the proportion of abuse inflicted by a care worker or a member of 
the victim’s own home has seen a decrease from 65% to 59%.  

Audit activity continues with the focus returning to safeguarding concerns that have remained open 
for some time.  A previous deep dive audit resulted in a significant increase in closure, but this has 
now dipped, and needs addressing as a priority to enable free flow of cases.  

In the past 13 months there have been repeat concerns raised for 646 individuals with the greater 
majority (428) having 2 concerns raised within the period.  

The national comparator data for 18/19 has now been added to the dashboard. Safeguarding 
concerns have seen a significant reduction over previous years and is now more consistent with 
the national average.  Sefton’s rate of S42 enquiries remains lower than the national average.  In 
general, Sefton’s abuse types are in line with previous years although, physical, financial and 
organisational abuse rates continue to be lower in Sefton than elsewhere.  

Case Study 

Progress on Integration 

Integrated Commissioning 

Joint work with Southport and Formby and South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups has 
secured funding to appoint 3 new integrated commissioning officer posts who will work on joint 
commissioning plans to promote integrated services across Sefton. 

Integrated Teams 

Fiona is a 63 years old woman living with her husband in their family home in a prosperous 
area of Sefton.  Fiona is a compulsive hoarder with anxiety, depression, arthritis, poor vision 
and mobility issues.  
The Fire Service contacted ASC to raise concerns for Fiona’s wellbeing and the pressure that 
her hoarding was putting on her marriage.  All bedrooms in the property are used to store 
items and the couple are using the couches in the lounge for sleeping. 
A visit to Fiona and her husband confirmed that they wanted assistance with de-cluttering and 
that Fiona also required a care needs assessment.  Fiona stressed the importance of a slow 
de-clutter as she valued many of the items that she has hoarded. This was undertaken and 
alternative services offered to Fiona to help with her health issues.
The case has now been transferred to the community team in order that work can begin on 
improving the conditions in the property, hopefully freeing up one-bedroom space to allow the 
couple to return to bed for sleeping.  

Page 58

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX A
The partners that make up the Sefton Provider Alliance have come together, working as one to 
improve population health outcomes for the population of Sefton.  One of the key priorities is to 
develop highly effective Integrated Care Teams who serve a population of 30-50,000. 

Social workers are integral to the approach and there has been a positive impact on how older and 
vulnerable people are supported through multi-disciplinary meetings and case finding approaches. 

Key High-Level Outcomes

There are a number of positive impacts/outcomes as a result of the introduction of Social Work 
Link Workers into the Integrated Care Teams, some of the key ones are noted below:

 People (service users, carers, families, and other staff) are better informed from both a 
health and social care perspective.

 Attendance at the weekly MDTs gives a timelier response to packages of care and support.
 Social Worker has stronger links to Urgent Care systems who work together to prevent 

hospital admissions.
 Better communication with health colleagues and the sharing of risk and risk planning, 

enabling a more joined up and safer approach for service users.
 Shared decision making around capacity.
 Completing assessments with District Nurses.
 Service users, carers and families feel more assured with joined up working. For example 

they know that their nurse is in communication with their social worker and they feel that 
they are being cared for by a team who understand their whole story, rather than a group 
of individuals working in isolation.

 Supporting people to return home from a care home environment.
 Working with medication management colleagues has led to medication being planned 

alongside packages of care so that medication prompts happen at the same time as care 
provided.

Page 59

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health)

25 February 2020

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Ian Moncur Health and Wellbeing Dec 19/Jan 20

Young People and Families Substance Use Service – Exercising Extension 
Options

In July 2017 Addaction were awarded a contract to provide Young People and Family 
Substance Use Services with effect from 1st October 2017. The contract was awarded 
for two and half years with an option to extend for up to a further two years. 
Consideration is now required on exercising continuation options as the core contract 
is due to expire on the 31st March 2020  

For the past two years Addaction have provided Young People and Family Substance 
Use Services that meet or exceed contractual and performance targets. Since going 
live in October 2017 the service has consistently increased the numbers of young 
people and families accessing treatment with an increase of 50% between October 
2018 and September 2019. The service works well in collaboration with key partner 
agencies with the majority of referrals received from Children and Family Services and 
Social Care. Recent re-structuring of the Early Help assessment and referral process 
has enabled Addaction to become involved with ‘Early Help Front Door’ meetings 
improving access substance use treatment and support.

Recommendation:

• To authorise the Director of Public Health / Head of Health and Wellbeing to 
exercise the first one year contract extension option and award an extension to the 
current contract from 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 subject to finances being 
available within the Public Health and Early Help budgets.

• To authorise the Director of Public Health / Head of Health and Wellbeing to 
exercise the second one year contract extension option and award an extension to 
current contract from 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022 subject to finances being 
available within the Public Health and Early Help budgets.  

Recommendations approved Monday 9th December 2019.

Renewal of Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS)

In October 2017 Sefton Council Public Health Commissioners established a Dynamic 
Purchasing System (DPS) for the commissioning of Substance Use Residential 
Rehabilitation Placements. The DPS replaced an outdated and problematic system of 
‘Spot Purchasing’ and was established for a period of two and a half years from the 
1st October 2017. The DPS is due to expire in March 2020 and consideration is now 
needed for its renewal or replacement.

Page 61

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX B

A Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS), as provided for within the 2015 Public 
Contracts Regulations, enables Sefton Council to ensure that fair and transparent 
commissioning arrangements are in place while enabling an individually tailored 
programme appropriate to the individual’s needs and requirements. 
 
Recommendation:

Delegate authority to the Head of Health and Wellbeing / Director of Public Health to 
renew the DPS on its existing basis for a period of twelve months from 1st April 2020.

Recommendation approved Monday 9th December 2019.

Sefton In Mind

Sefton in Mind is a mental health campaign that runs from 10th September to 11th 
October and has been running for the last 3 years. 

Highlights this year included:
 The social media reach is 30 times what it was back in 2017, with content using 

the hashtag #SeftoninMind reaching 1.2 million people.  The hashtag was used 
by more than 50 different accounts on Twitter.

 We worked with Merseyrail to offer a free travel day on Sunday 6 October, over 
200 residents downloaded a free travel voucher.  

 560 people completed the Zero Suicide Alliance training, this was over five 
times higher than our original target.

 The campaign was also shortlisted for a national award in the category of 
Supporting Health and Wellbeing in Communications.  

Health and Wellbeing Communications Update

Communications around the Sefton Clean Air Zone (CAZ) has begun with a draft 
communication and engagement plan in development. As part of this plan, a press 
release has been issued to announce Sefton’s plans to explore a CAZ with the news 
featuring on BBC North West Tonight, BBC Radio Merseyside, Air Quality News and 
the Liverpool Echo.

This year’s flu campaign once again aimed to encourage high risk groups to get the 
vaccination. The digital campaign made use of digital channels to target pregnant 
women, people with long term health conditions and parents of children aged 2-3.

Green Sefton invited local people and businesses to submit their ideas on how the 
service can use land and buildings more commercially. This was promoted across 
social media and a press release was featured in the local media. Green Sefton also 
promoted a survey to find out more about what residents would like to see improved 
at Bootle Golf Course, this survey was promoted by professional golfer and Sky Sports 
broadcaster Nick Dougherty.

The communications team supported Leisure’s entry for the iNetwork Awards by 
producing a video about Aspiring Instructors, the scheme went on to win the award. 
Active Lifestyle’s Active Aging falls prevention classes were featured on ITV news as 
part of a feature about older people and mental health. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 11

https://mysefton.co.uk/2019/10/02/catch-the-train-to-your-happy-place-for-free-this-sunday/


APPENDIX B

Leisure Performance Update

Early Intervention & Prevention 

In the last quarter, a total of 118 leisure passes have been issued through 
referrals from Children’s Social Care – these consisted of 95 new passes, 19 
renewals and 4 leaving care passes.

The partnership with Liverpool Football Club Foundation has continued to develop 
with the Friday night Kicks programme.  Over 40 weeks has now been delivered 
at Netherton Activity Centre for 8-19 year olds, with an average of 20 participants 
per session.

The Dame Kelly Holmes Trust are delivering a ‘Get on Track’ programme in Sefton 
as part of their Sport England funded project for 16-25 year olds, specifically 
targeting those not in education or training.  

During October half term there were 50 sessions and 119 coaching hours 
delivered through Be Active for reception age to 12-year-old children, with 1142 
participants attending. Activities included LFC Foundation camps at Netherton 
Activity Centre with over 150 children attending for 3 days, multi-sport sessions 
at Litherland Sports Park and Dunes, as well as wave rave pool parties. These 
sessions contributed to an increase of +7% income compared to October half 
term 2018.

A universal offering of community sessions continues to take place across the 
borough, which contribute towards the team income target of £81,000. A new 
loyalty card has been introduced offering ‘Mini Members’ discounted access to 
Active Buggies, Baby Boogie, Baby Ballet and Totz Splash sessions. This is in 
addition to other community sessions such as Couch to 5km, Jump into 
Gymnastics and Totz Gymnastics continuing.

The 121 programme is a physical activity programme designed to improve the 
health and wellbeing of Sefton’s young people (aged 11-19) who may need 
support. Referrals are being made currently for those who are on Early Help or 
Child in Need plans. In the last quarter, there were 16 new young people who 
accessed the programme, and 4 still engaged from the previous quarter. Since 
the programme has launched there has been a total of 49 young people engaged 
or referred on to the programme.  

As part of a commission funded through the Community Safety team, September 
saw the end of our Park Nights summer programme, delivering free activities in 
areas identified in partnership with Merseyside Police to target antisocial 
behaviour during the light nights. 81 sessions were delivered over 13 weeks, 
with 1758 participants attending.  Activities were also delivered over a three-
week period as part of Operation Banger during our ‘Treat or Treat’ programme. 

Health & Wellbeing Delivery

MOVE IT received 28 referrals within the quarter July – Sept 2019.  11 referrals were 
family referrals (with 5-10-year-old children) and 17 referrals are receiving one to one 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX B
support (11-16 year olds).  The main source of referrals were self-referral and 
School/Community Nurses.  

Active Ageing received 19 referrals within July – Sept 2019.  Of those, 100% improved 
their ‘timed up and go’ score, an assessment tool used to measure basic functional 
mobility and safety pre-and-post-programme.  Improvements in the timed up and go 
score mean that the risk of falling is decreased. 

The Exercise Referral programme received 1009 referrals within the quarter July – 
Sept 2019. This is an increase of 129 referrals from the previous quarter.

Within this quarter the service has made 682 signposts into partner organisations i.e. 
Living Well Sefton, who then work with link workers using a social prescribing 
approach. 245 of these signposts have continued with our services such as attending 
gym or other community-based activities.

This quarter has seen the team undergo changes to their roles due to the recent leisure 
review, which in the long term will see the merger of the functions of health and 
wellbeing with fitness.  As of October, there has been a presence of an Active 
Lifestyles Officer within the Fitness Suite as part of the Fitness team and over time it 
is envisaged that there will be development of the Fitness Team to allow them to 
deliver other services, such as NHS Health Checks, as part of the Fitness offer, 
thereby improving what will become an all-encompassing, unique health membership. 

The Active Lifestyles team have delivered 126 Health Checks within the quarter July - 
Sept 2019.  This quarter saw the first Magdalen House clinics take place for Sefton 
Employees, which were incredibly popular. Since then the team have delivered 20 
Clinic’s including Southport Town Hall, Netherton Family Wellbeing, Schools and 
continued regular monthly clinics held in Crosby Library, Meadows, Netherton Activity 
Centre and Dunes Splash World.

The new Active Lifestyles Weight Management Service (formally Diets Don’t Work) 
has been re-branded as ‘Weigh Forward’.  The free 6-week programme is designed 
to help those needing weight management advice in a supportive and friendly group 
or individual setting. Within this quarter we have successfully delivered “Train the 
Trainer” courses for LWS partners, outlying the new ‘weigh forward’ course focusing 
on the new content but also the delivery of the new programme. 

Almost 20% of our children are obese when they leave primary school at 11 
years. (Sefton Children & Young People’s Plan 2015 – 2020).  Within the quarter of 
July – Sept we have engaged with 19 schools. For every school who has engaged 
18 (94%) have taken up 2 or more options of the package. From those schools 
engaged 38% are from deprived wards. 

Active Workforce introduced a new 5km event which took place in Princes Park 
following the route around the Marine Lake, giving them the opportunity to enjoy the 
views of Southport. With over 150 people taking part, Active Workforce are hoping to 
build on this in 2020 to make it as successful as the Crosby event. In addition to both 
5K Challenges, Active Workforce also organised 4 Mountain Group Walks, 2 
Duathlon’s, a Mixed Football & Netball Tournament and a Wipeout Challenge on 
Crosby Marine Lake, engaging 916 staff in all events. Plans are in place to increase 

Page 64

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX B
participation for the Event Programme next year and contribute to Sefton’s Borough 
of Culture title. 

In response to the results from the Stress Survey, Active Workforce have offered their 
services to the ‘Workplace Wellbeing Champions’ Programme being devised by Public 
Health for Sefton’s workforce. 

Leisure Centres

Dunes Splashworld will close on 2 December 2019 to address some structural issues 
and is due to reopen in Summer 2020 following a full refurbishment. Leisure are in 
discussions with contractors with regards to carrying out the remedial work.

The hospitality element at Crosby Lakeside Activity Centre will close in April 2020 and 
reopen in April 2021 following refurbishment. The facility will continue to operate 
between now and then with the focus on the transition period post April 2020.

A recent change in the weekend operating model has taken place with a reduced 
winter offer. Lakeside Lodge will close on Saturday and Sunday evenings and no food 
will be available on Sundays. 

The activities team has recently undertaken a consultation exercise through an end of 
season debrief.  Although positive, this debrief did highlight some areas that instructors 
felt could be improved for future delivery.  Because of this some improvement 
measures have already been implemented. The team are currently gearing up for 3 
major inspections, the first of which is scheduled for 29th Nov 2019.

The lake is regularly tested throughout summer months to ensure it meets EU bathing 
water quality standards.  Unfortunately, the sample taken at the end of September 19 
did not meet these standards and as a precautionary measure all lake submersion 
activities ceased. The water quality has been retested and the results now show that 
the water quality has improved and is now well within industry standards. 

Meadows Health & Fitness continues to hold Leisure’s largest membership base. 
However there has been a drop of 47 members since June, with the majority citing the 
lack of parking spaces as the main reason. Options to provide an additional 75 car 
parking spaces at Maghull Town Hall are continuing to be explored.

At the last quarterly report Officers informed Cabinet Member of the issues with the 
synthetic turf pitch (STP) at Litherland Sports Park.  Since the last report there has 
been progress at pace, with a report going to full Council on the 4th December 2019 
to approve £250,000 to be spent on the refurbishment. 

LSP has been identified within the playing pitch strategy as a site that will 
accommodate two new 3G pitches and will become Sefton’s Football Academy. The 
£250,000 will cover the resurfacing of the pitch and upgrading it from a sand based 
surface to 3G and renew all existing lights to LED, and therefore the facility will remain 
operational and become more efficient. 

Netherton Activity Centre continues to be a shining example of our community hub 
approach to locality working and continues to be very successful. The integration of 
the different teams within the facility are helping to support the community with 

Page 65

Agenda Item 11



APPENDIX B
different services on their doorstep. Bonfire night saw NAC host a successful firework 
display with between 10,000-15,000 people attending thanks to L30 millions for their 
continued support.

Bootle Leisure Centre is experiencing a range of building maintenance issues which 
are having an impact on bookings and the operational nature of the site. Work is being 
done by Centre staff to attempt to resolve these issues. There are also some IT issues 
which are replicated across all 6 Leisure sites and we are working closely with IT 
colleagues to address these.

Aquatics

Schools are in full swing with the new 2019-2020 swimming less timetable. As a real 
positive the team have noticed a rise in schools putting more funding into swimming 
lessons and requesting additional swimming instructors to provide more support for 
their pupils. The total number of aquatics members across all 3 sites remains 
comfortably at around 2,000 with a further 1,000 on waiting lists.  The team work daily 
on keeping the programme moving.  
As most swimming services struggle with finding adequate staff the Aquatics Team 
have set up a volunteer programme.  This year there has been 7 volunteers gaining 
their qualifications through this programme and becoming fully fledged swimming 
instructors for Active Aquatics.

Activate Fitness

Over the 6 Active Sefton sites there are currently 12,514 members (September 2019), 
generating £310,054 per month. With the implementation of Virtual Group Fitness, 
there are 520 fitness classes available for our members to attend over the 6 facilities. 

A breakdown of membership figures are as shown:

BLC CLAC DLC LSP MDW NAC

2281 1842 2089 1133 4235 934

Future Developments

As detailed in the report, there are some ongoing service improvements currently 
underway, particularly in relation to the maintenance of the Leisure Centres.  Focus 
over forthcoming months will therefore be to rectify these areas where possible, which 
is essential before it is possible to continue driving operations forward.  However, there 
are also service development areas highlighted throughout this report that will lead to 
improvements in both new and existing services, particularly through the increased 
partnership approach that has been established through Locality working and the 
Living Well Sefton partnership.

Page 66

Agenda Item 11



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 25 February 2020

Subject: Work Programme 2019/20, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key 
Decision Forward Plan

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing
Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To submit to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee its Work Programme for the 
remainder of the Municipal Year 2019/20 and note that any additional agenda items 
requested may be included within the Work Programme for 2020/21; to identify any 
items for pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the latest Key Decision Forward Plan; to 
agree the arrangements made for the scrutiny of draft Quality Accounts for 2020; and 
to receive an update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Recommendations:

That:

(1) the Work Programme for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be 
noted, along with any additional items to be included within the Work 
Programme for 2020/21 and thereon be agreed;

(2) items for pre-scrutiny from the Key Decision Forward Plan that fall under the 
remit of the Committee, as set out in Appendix B to the report, be considered 
and any agreed items be included in the work programme referred to in (1) 
above;

(3) the arrangements made for the scrutiny of draft Quality Accounts for 2020, as 
outlined in paragraph 3.3 of the report, be approved; and

(4) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be noted.

Page 67

Agenda Item 12



Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To determine the Work Programme of items to be considered during the Municipal Year 
2019/20; identify any scrutiny review topics which would demonstrate that the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny “adds value” to the Council; and update on work that falls under 
the remit of the Committee.

The pre-scrutiny process assists Cabinet Members to make effective decisions by 
examining issues before making formal decisions.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

No alternative options have been considered as the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
needs to approve its Work Programme and identify scrutiny review topics.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any financial 
implications arising from the consideration of a key decision or relating to a 
recommendation arising from a Working Group review will be reported to Members at the 
appropriate time.

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. Reference in the 
Work Programme to the approval of and monitoring of recommendations relating to 
this Purpose will help to protect vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: None directly applicable to this report 

Commission, broker and provide core services: None directly applicable to this report 

Place – leadership and influencer: None directly applicable to this report.

Drivers of change and reform: None directly applicable to this report 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: None directly applicable to this report 

Page 68

Agenda Item 12



Greater income for social investment: None directly applicable to this report 

Cleaner Greener: None directly applicable to this report 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Work Programme and Key Decision Forward Plan Report is not subject to FD/LD 
consultation. Any specific financial and legal implications arising from the consideration 
of a key decision will be subsequently reported to Members in an appropriate manner.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:

 Appendix A - Work Programme for 2019/20;
 Appendix B - Latest Key Decision Forward Plan items relating to this Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Introduction/Background

1. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

1.1 The Work Programme of items submitted to the Committee for consideration during 
the remainder of the Municipal Year 2019/20 is attached at Appendix A to the 
report. The programme was produced in liaison with the appropriate Heads of 
Service, whose roles fall under the remit of the Committee.

1.2 Members are requested to consider whether there are any other items that they 
wish the Committee to consider, that fall within the terms of reference of the 
Committee. A Work Programme will be submitted to each meeting of the 
Committee during 2020/21 and updated, as appropriate.

Page 69

Agenda Item 12

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


1.3 The Committee is requested to note the Work Programme for the remainder 
of 2019/20 and note that any additional items may be included within the 
Programme for the next Municipal Year, 2020/21.

2. PRE-SCRUTINY OF ITEMS IN THE KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN

2.1 Members may request to pre-scrutinise items from the Key Decision Forward Plan 
which fall under the remit (terms of reference) of this Committee. The Forward 
Plan, which is updated each month, sets out the list of items to be submitted to the 
Cabinet for consideration during the next four-month period.

2.2 The pre-scrutiny process assists the Cabinet Members to make effective 
decisions by examining issues beforehand and making recommendations prior to 
a determination being made.

2.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board has requested that only those key 
decisions that fall under the remit of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
should be included on the agenda for consideration.

2.4 The latest Forward Plan published on 31 January 2020 is attached at Appendix B 
for this purpose. For ease of identification, items listed on the Forward Plan for the 
first time appear as shaded. 

2.5 There is just 1 item within the current Plan that falls under the remit of the Committee 
on this occasion, namely:

 Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing Care Sector.

2.6 Should Members require further information in relation to any item on the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, would they please contact the relevant Officer named 
against the item in the Plan, prior to the Meeting.

2.7 The Committee is invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, as set out in Appendix B to the report, which fall 
under the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the 
Work Programme referred to in (1) above.

3. DRAFT QUALITY ACCOUNTS - PROCESS TO BE UNDERTAKEN IN 2020

3.1 Quality Accounts are annual reports from providers of NHS healthcare 
organisations about the quality of the services provided and are available for the 
public to view.

3.2 At the last meeting of the Committee, held on 7 January 2020, the Committee 
resolved that:

“(3) consideration of the arrangements to scrutinise draft Quality Accounts 
during 2020 be delegated to the Chair of the Committee and once the 

Page 70

Agenda Item 12



process has been determined, Committee Members to be informed of the 
arrangements;” (Minute No. 45 refers).

3.3 An informal meeting of the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee took place on 
15 January 2020, together with representatives of Healthwatch Sefton.

It was agreed that:

(a) the following Trusts be invited to submit their draft Quality Accounts for 
consideration during 2020:

 Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust (to consider developments in mental 
health);

 Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust (Part of 
the Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust); and

 Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust;

(b) the Deputy Chief Nurse, Sefton CCGs, be invited to attend the informal 
meeting, to offer information, advice, etc.

(c) an informal meeting of Members of the O&S Committee (Adult Social Care 
and Health) be held to consider the draft Quality Accounts on Friday, 15 May 
2020, at Formby Professional Development Centre, at 10.00 a.m. – 2.00 
p.m.

3.4 The Committee is requested to agree the process to be undertaken during 
2020 regarding draft Quality Accounts, as outlined in paragraph 3.3 above.

4. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

4.1 During the last cycle of meetings, the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
and the four Overview and Scrutiny Committees considered a report on the 
guidance produced by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government relating to Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities 
following on from the Communities and Local Government Select Committee’s 
inquiry into Overview and Scrutiny. This Committee considered the matter at its 
meeting held on 15 October 2019 (Minute No. 32 refers).

4.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and the four Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees all agreed the recommendations contained in the report, one 
of which being that updates on Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (LCRCAO&S) be included in the Work 
Programme report considered at each Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

4.3 In accordance with the above decision, information on the LCRCAO&S is set out 
below.

Page 71

Agenda Item 12



4.4 Role

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was established by the Combined 
Authority in May 2017 in accordance with the Combined Authorities Order 2017. 

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to:

 Scrutinise the decision and actions taken by the Combined Authority or the 
Metro Mayor;

 Provide a “critical friend” to policy and strategy development;
 Undertake scrutiny reviews into areas of strategic importance for the people of 

the Liverpool City Region; and
 Monitor the delivery of the Combined Authority’s strategic plan.

4.5 Membership

The Committee is made up of 3 elected Members from each of the constituent 
Local Authorities of the LCR Combined Authority, along with one elected Member 
from both the Liverpool City Region Liberal Democrat Group and the Liverpool 
City Region Conservative Group.

Sefton’s appointed Members are Councillors Dowd, Howard and Marshall. 
Councillor Dowd is Sefton’s Scrutiny Link.

Councillors Pugh and Sir Ron Watson are the respective representatives of the 
Liverpool City Region Liberal Democrat Group and the Liverpool City Region 
Conservative Group.

4.6 Chair

The Chair of the LCRCAO&S cannot be a Member of the majority group. 
Councillor Thomas Crone, a Green Party Councillor serving on Liverpool City 
Council has been appointed Chair for the 2019/20 Municipal Year.

4.7 Quoracy Issues

A high number of meetings of the LCRCAO&S have been inquorate. 

The quorum for meetings of the LCRCAO&S is 14, two-thirds of the total number 
of members, 20. This high threshold is not set by the Combined Authority but is 
set out in legislation. 

The Combined Authority’s Monitoring Officer will be looking to work with the 
Monitoring Officers from the other Combined Authorities to identify what problems 
they are experiencing with Scrutiny and how/if they had overcome them. 
Representations to Government would also be considered once all options locally 
to resolve the quorum issue had been exhausted. The CA Monitoring Officer 
would then be able to provide evidence to Government that the quorum level was 
obstructing the work of scrutiny within the CA. 

Page 72

Agenda Item 12



4.8 Meetings

Information on all meetings and membership of the LCRCAO&S can be obtained 
using the following link:

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0

15 January 2020 – Budget Meeting

The budget meeting of LCRCAO&S was scheduled to held on 15 January 2020. 
However, as the meeting was inquorate it did not proceed and was subsequently 
re-scheduled. A private session was then held to discuss the following items and 
to canvass O&S Councillors’ opinions:

 Mayoral Combined Authority Budget Setting Report 2020/21; and
 Review of Actions to Improve Poor Air Quality Across the Liverpool City 

Region.

12 February 2020 – Re-Scheduled Budget Meeting

The meeting was quorate, and the LCRCAO&S was asked to consider the 
business outstanding from the inquorate budget meeting scheduled to be held on 
15 January 2020, namely:

 Appointment of Vice-Chair;
 Appointment to the Audit and Governance Committee 2019/20;
 Review into the Liverpool City Region Local Enterprise Partnership; and
 Task and Finish Review – Next Steps.

The Minutes of the meeting will be available in due course, using the link referred 
to above.

4 March 2020 - Next Meeting

The next regular meeting of the LCRCAO&S is scheduled to be held on 4 March 
2020.

Details of all the meetings can be obtained using the link referred to above.

4.9 The Committee is requested to note the update on the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 73

Agenda Item 12

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

1
14/02/19

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

Date of Meeting 25 JUNE 19
Bootle

03 SEPTEMBER 19
Southport

15 OCTOBER 19
Bootle

07 JANUARY 20
Southport

25 FEBRUARY 20
Bootle

Regular Reports:
Cabinet Member Update Report
(Julie Leahair/Julie Eliot/Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

Work Programme Update
(Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

CCGs’ Update Report
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Health Provider Performance Dashboard
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Service Operational Reports:
Public Health Annual Report
(Matt Ashton/Helen Armitage)

X

Progress Update on the Development of a New 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Sefton 
2020 – 2025
(Helen Armitage)

X

Statutory Guidance on Overview & Scrutiny in 
Local and Combined Authorities
(Paul Fraser)

X

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 12



APPENDIX A

2
14/02/19

Item 25 JUNE 19 03 SEPTEMBER 19 15 OCTOBER 19 07 JANUARY 20 25 FEBRUARY 20
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)
(Wayne Leatherbarrow)

X

Climate Emergency
(Stephan Van Arendsen)

X X

Draft Quality Accounts - Process to be 
Undertaken for 2020
(Debbie Campbell)

X

Community Substance Use
(Alan McGee)

X

CCGs’ Updates
Review of 7 Day GP Extended Access Scheme
(CCGs)

X

Five Year Plan for Sefton (NHS Planning 
Guidance)
(CCGs)

X X

Primary Care Networks in Sefton
(CCGs)

X

Update on North Mersey Urgent Care Review
(CCGs)

X

Social Prescribing
(CCGs)

X

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 12



APPENDIX A

3
14/02/19

Item 25 JUNE 19 03 SEPTEMBER 19 15 OCTOBER 19 07 JANUARY 20 25 FEBRUARY 20
NHS Updates:
Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust X

Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust - Merger

X X

Review of Hyper-Acute Stroke Services
(North Mersey CCGs)

X

Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust – Low 
Secure Unit Project

X

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

1

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 MARCH 2020 - 30 JUNE 2020

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Members or Officers expect to take during the next four month period.  The Plan is rolled forward 
every month and is available to the public at least 28 days before the beginning of each month.

A Key Decision is defined in the Council's Constitution as:

1. any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
approved by the Council and which requires a gross budget expenditure, saving or virement 
of more than £100,000 or more than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the 
greater;

2. any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact on a significant 
number of people living or working in two or more Wards

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by 
contacting the relevant officer listed against each Key Decision, within the time period indicated.

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution, a Key 
Decision may not be taken, unless:

 it is published in the Forward Plan;
 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and
 if the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting 

has been given.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though 
they have not been included in the Forward Plan in accordance with Rule 26 (General Exception) 
and Rule 28 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules.

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle L20 
7AE or accessed from the Council's website: www.sefton.gov.uk 

 Council Constitution
 Forward Plan
 Reports on the Key Decisions to be taken
 Other documents relating to the proposed decision may be submitted to the decision making 

meeting and these too will be made available by the contact officer named in the Plan
 The minutes for each Key Decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days 

after having been made

Some reports to be considered by the Cabinet/Council may contain exempt information and will 
not be made available to the public. The specific reasons (Paragraph No(s)) why such reports are 
exempt are detailed in the Plan and the Paragraph No(s) and descriptions are set out below:-

Page 79

Agenda Item 12

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

2

1. Information relating to any individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 

 authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or        
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter  arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes a) to give under any enactment a notice 
under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed  on a person; or b) to make an order or 
direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime
8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by virtue of that 
paragraph if it is required to be registered under—

(a) the Companies Act 1985;
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974;
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992;
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or
(f) the Charities Act 1993.

9.Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local 
planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992
10. Information which—

(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above, is exempt 

information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Cabinet and Council which are held 
at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle or the Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport.  The dates and 
times of the meetings are published on www.sefton.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic 
Services Section on telephone number 0151 934 2068.

NOTE:  
For ease of identification, items listed within the document for the first time will appear shaded.

Dwayne Johnson
Chief Executive

Page 80

Agenda Item 12

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

3

FORWARD PLAN INDEX OF ITEMS

Item Heading Officer Contact
Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing 
Care Sector

Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 
0151 934 3744

Page 81

Agenda Item 12



APPENDIX B

4

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing Care Sector  
To provide an update on the project agreed at September 
2019 Cabinet and to make recommendations on proposed 
next steps.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 5 Mar 2020 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 06/02/2020 to 
05/03/2020.  Reason: the findings of the first stage of the 
project and the associated proposed report are still being 
considered internally

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Officers and Key Stakeholders.

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings and Emails.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Adult Social Care - Residential & Nursing Care Sector

Contact Officer(s) details Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 3744

Page 82

Agenda Item 12


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust - Low Secure Unit Project
	7 Social Prescribing in Sefton
	9 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report
	10 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider Performance Dashboard
	11 Cabinet Member Reports
	Appendix A ASC - March 2020
	Appendix B CM H&WB

	12 Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan
	Appendix A Work Prog
	Appendix B KDFP


